
 
                                                              AGENDA 

Agenda – November 25, 2025 |  Page 1 of 2 | PJV 
 

 
Administrative Committee 

Credit Committee 
Board Meeting 

 

November 25, 2025 
 

Board Chair Mullin and Committee Chairs Marshall and Slaven are calling regular meetings of the 
Board of Commissioners, Administrative Committee, and Credit Committee for Tuesday, 
November 25, 2025, at 1:45 p.m. in the Board Room of the Saint Paul Port Authority, 400 
Wabasha Street No., Suite 240, St. Paul, MN. 

 
Administrative Committee  

November 25, 2025 | 1:45 p.m.  
 

Minutes 
Approval of the Minutes from the October 27, 2025 Special Administrative Committee Meeting 
 
Conflicts of Interest 
Conflicts with any Items on the Agenda 
 
New Business 

1. Approval of 2026 Operating Budget 
 

2. Approval of Final Certification of Tax Levy  
 
Such Other Business That May Come Before the Committee 
 

Credit Committee 
November 25, 2025| 1:45 p.m.  

 

Minutes 
Approval of the Minutes from the October 27, 2025 Special Credit Committee Meeting  
 
Conflicts of Interest 
Conflicts with any Items on the Agenda 
 
New Business 

1. Authorization to Accept Grant Funds Appropriated by State Legislature for a Capital Area 
Economic Grant Program to be Administered by the Port Authority and Enter into Related 
Grant Agreement with the State  

 
Such Other Business That May Come Before the Committee 
 

 
 



 
                                                              AGENDA 

Agenda – November 25, 2025 |  Page 2 of 2 | PJV 
 

 
Board Meeting 

November 27, 2025 | 2:00 p.m.  
 

Minutes 
Approval of the Minutes from the October 27, 2025 Special Annual Board Meeting  
 
Conflicts of Interest 
Conflicts with any Items on the Agenda 
 
New Business 
Administrative Committee  

1. Resolution No. 4834 – Approval of 2026 Operating Budget  
 

2. Resolution No. 4835 – Approval of Final Certification of Tax Levy  
 
Credit Committee 

1. Resolution No. 4836 – Authorization to Accept Grant Funds Appropriated by State 
Legislature for a Capital Area Economic Grant Program to be Administered by the Port 
Authority and Enter into Related Grant Agreement with the State  

 
Such Other Business That May Come Before the Board 

cc:  City Clerk  



    
                 
       

                                                                                                                                                                MINUTES 

Administrative Committee – October 27, 2025 | Page 1 of 2 | pjv 
 
 

 
SPECIAL ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 

OCTOBER 27, 2025 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
     A special meeting of the Port Authority Administrative Committee was held on October 
27, 2025, at 1:35 p.m. in the Board Room of the Saint Paul Port Authority, 400 Wabasha Street 
No., Suite 240, Saint Paul, Minnesota, 55102.  

 
The following Committee Members were present: 

 Amy Brendmoen    Courtney Henry  John Marshall 
 Don Mullin         
 

Also present were the following: 
Ashley Aram    Tonya Bauer   Todd Hurley  

 Holly Huston    Sarah Illi   Emma Kasiga  
 Dana Krueger    Emily Lawrence  Francis Onu  
 Laurie Siever     Michael Solomon   Nikki Tix  
 Phoua Vang    Annie Watson   Kristine Williams 
 Linda Williams    JP Yohannes       

Rebecca Noecker, City of Saint Paul   
Trinidad Uribe, Sprinkler Fitters Local 417 

 Mindy Utesch, Old National Bank 
 Gwenyth O’Valley, University of St. Thomas School of Law 

Miguel Brito, WSCO 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Committee Member Mullin made a motion to approve the minutes of the August 26, 2025 
Administrative Committee meeting. The motion was seconded by Committee Member Henry and 
carried unanimously.  

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

   There were no conflicts of interest with any items on the agenda.  
 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 

ELECTION OF OFFICERS 

Committee Member Mullin recommended and made a motion for the appointment of 
the following slate of officers and committee chairs for 2026: 

 

 
 



    
                 
       

                                                                                                                                                                MINUTES 

Administrative Committee – October 27, 2025 | Page 2 of 2 | pjv 
 
 

 
 Chair:     Don Mullin 
 Vice Chair:    Amy Brendmoen 
 Secretary:    Courtney Henry 
 Treasurer:    Cheniqua Johnson 
 Assistant Secretary:   Emily Lawrence, General Counsel  
 Assistant Treasurer:    Michael Solomon, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 Credit Committee Chair:   Matthew Slaven 
 Administrative Committee Chair:  John Marshall  

 
 The motion was seconded by Committee Member Henry and submitted to a roll call vote 
as required under Minnesota Statues. The Committee Members voted as follows: 
 
 Committee Member Brendmoen – aye  Committee Member Henry – aye 

Committee Chair Marshall – aye   Committee Member Mullin – aye  
Committee Member Slaven – absent  
    

APPROVAL OF RE-ENGAGEMENT OF 
EXTERNAL AUDITOR FOR THE FY2025 AUDIT 

 Mr. Solomon reviewed his memorandum with the Committee requesting approval of the 
re-engagement of Clifton Larson Allen as the external auditor for the Saint Paul Port Authority 
including the execution of a related statement of work, for the fiscal year ending December 31, 
2025. Committee Member Henry made a motion to approve the request. The motion was 
seconded by Committee Member Brendmoen and carried unanimously.  
 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 1:39 p.m.  
 
 
 

By: __________________________ 
Its: __________________________ 
 
 
 



 
MEMORANDUM 

 Page 1 |MJS 
 

  
To:   ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE                    Meeting Date:  November 25, 2025 
   BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
From:  Michael Solomon 

Subject:  APPROVAL OF 2026 OPERATING BUDGET 
   RESOLUTION NO. 4834 
    
Action Requested: 
Approval of 2026 Port Authority Operating Budget (the “2026 Budget”) and granting of authority 
to the President to modify the 2026 Budget as necessary, pending Saint Paul City Council final 
action on the 2026 mandatory property tax levy. 

Background: 
Attached please find the adopted 2025 Port Authority Operating Budget and the proposed 2026 
Port Authority Operating Budget. 

2026 Proposed Budget: 
The proposed 2026 Budget projects revenues in the amount of $7,565,958 and provides spending 
authority in the amount of $7,561,904, resulting in a net operating income of $4,054.  
 
Total revenues are expected to increase by $454,525, and total expenses are budgeted to 
increase by $446,666, slightly increasing the net operating income to $4,054, as compared to 
$3,495 in 2025. 
 
Revenue Variances:        

Property Tax Revenues               

Mandatory levy is budgeted to increase by $250,000.  

Development Fee Recovery and Interest on Loans          
Fee revenue is anticipated to increase by just over $418,716, offset by a $333,050 reduction in 
interest on internal loans as cost recovery shifts between principal and interest repayment 
related to completed redevelopment projects. 
 
Fiscal and Administrative Fees 
The revenue associated with lending, loan administration, and conduit bond revenues is 
expected to increase by $45,243.  Loan volume and fee revenues are budgeted to increase; 
conduit debt volume is anticipated to fall. 
 
Interest Income              
Interest rates have been decreasing in the second half of 2025, and further Federal Reserve 
interest rate reductions are expected, reducing the income from investments by over $65,000.  
 



 
MEMORANDUM 

  
  
  Page 2 |MJS 
 

 

Expense Variances         

Personnel Costs                 

Similar to others organizations, personnel costs are budgeted to increase by $337,0264 due to 
inflation and increased benefit costs. Additionally, the Development Team seeks to add capacity 
to support future projects in a growing portfolio of new and existing work on the river and inland 
development areas. 
 
Professional Services and Marketing               
Inflationary pressure on existing contracts and a proposed website investment in the marketing 
budget increased the combined line items by roughly $32,000.  
 
Property Maintenance 
Increases in property maintenance needs on properties managed or owned by the Port Authority 
have increased by more than $91,000 due to inflation and additional properties under 
management.  
 
Development                  
The Development Budget was incorporated into the Operating Budget for the first time in 2024. 
The 2026 Budget provides resources for current and future development work not related to 
specific project budgets and is relatively flat when compared to 2025. 
 
Recommendation:
We recommend approval of the 2026 Budget and granting authority to the President to modify 
the 2026 Budget as necessary, pending St. Paul City Council final action on the 2026 mandatory 
property tax levy. 

 
Attachments:    2026 Port Authority Operating Budget Summary 
                        Resolution 
 
 
 



2025 2026 Variance %
Budget Budget 2026 to 2025 Change

Revenues
Property taxes-Operations 2,101,700 2,351,700 250,000
Property taxes-Debt Service 800,000 800,000 -               
Property taxes- uncollectible (75,000) (50,000) 25,000         
CCP Grant to Port Authority 850,000 900,000         50,000         
Fiscal & Administrative fees 1,270,000 1,315,243      45,243         
Development Fee Recovery 961,643 1,380,359      418,716       
Interest on Loans 633,600 300,550         (333,050)      
Interest Income 268,000 200,000         (68,000)        
Land Rentals 301,490 368,106         66,616         

Total Revenues 7,111,433 7,565,958      454,525       6.39%
454,525       

Expenses
Personnel Costs 3,948,750 4,286,014      337,264       
Professional Services 517,800 510,500 (7,300)          
General & Administrative 710,320 698,001         (12,319)        
Marketing 141,500 181,500         40,000         
Property Maintenance 151,900 243,073         91,173         
Development 837,668 842,816         5,148           
Mandatory Levy supported debt 800,000 800,000 -               

Total Expenses 7,107,938 7,561,904 446,666 6.28%

Net Operating Income (Loss) 3,495 4,054

Saint Paul Port Authority
Operating Budget

 for the years ending December 31, 2025 and 2026



 
 

 
Resolution No. 4834 

 
 

RESOLUTION OF  
PORT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL 

 
[APPROVAL OF 2026 OPERATING BUDGET] 

 
 
WHEREAS, staff has presented to the Board of Commissioners (the “Board”) of the Port 

Authority of the City of Saint Paul (the “Port Authority”) a proposed operating budget for 2026, with 
its recommendation for approval; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board has been given an opportunity to review and discuss the proposed 

budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT 

AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL, that the proposed 2026 operating budget for the Port 
Authority, which has been presented to the Board at this meeting, is hereby approved. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the President of the Port Authority is authorized to modify 

this budget as necessary pending Saint Paul City Council final action on the 2026 mandatory 
property tax levy. 

 
Adopted:  November 25, 2025   
 

       PORT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL 
 
 
       By        
       Its        
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By        
Its        



 
MEMORANDUM 

 Page 1 | MJS  
 

 
To:   ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE             Meeting Date:   November 25, 2025 
   BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  
 

From:  Michael Solomon 

Subject:  APPROVAL OF FINAL CERTIFICATION OF TAX LEVY 
   RESOLUTION NO. 4835 
 
Action Requested: 
Approval of the Truth in Taxation Certification and authorization for the President of the Saint 
Paul Port Authority (the “Port Authority”) to submit the Final Certification of Tax Levy (the 
“Certification”) to Ramsey County. 
 
Background: 
Minnesota Truth in Taxation Law provides that counties, municipalities, school districts, and 
special taxing districts (including port authorities) must certify to the County Auditor by the end 
of December of each year the proposed tax levy for taxes levied in the subsequent calendar year.  
 
In August 2025, the Board approved the Port Authority’s Preliminary Truth in Taxation 
Certification which included a $500,000 levy increase in the mandatory property tax levy over 
the previous year’s levy.  
 
As provided in Minnesota Statutes Section 469.053(4), the City of Saint Paul is required to 
approve the Port Authority’s mandatory levy; however, the City’s Preliminary Truth in Taxation 
Certification in September did not include the requested Port Authority levy increase.  
 
The City Council is now evaluating an option to increase the Port Authority’s mandatory levy by 
up to $250,000, and the final determination is anticipated to be approved on December 3, 2025.  
 
As such, we propose certifying the Port Authority’s levy based on the City’s final levy 
determination, and by extension, granting the Port Authority’s President the authority to adjust 
the Truth in Taxation Certification to the level approved by the City.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
MEMORANDUM 

 Page 2 | MJS  
 

 
The recommended 2025 tax levy payable in 2026 is: 

Example A     Example  B 
             $250,000 Increase     Zero Increase 
 
1. General Obligation Bond Debt Service    $5,523,884   $5,523,884 

 
2. Mandatory Levy pursuant to Minnesota Statutes  $3,046,700   $2,796,700 

Section 469.053, Subdivision 4, at a rate not to 
exceed .01813% of market value 

3. Discretionary Levy pursuant to Minnesota Statutes $   105,000       $   105,000 
Section 469.053, Subdivision 6. Pledged to industrial 
redevelopment 

 
TOTAL TAX LEVY PAYABLE IN 2026     $8,675,584   $8,425,584 

 
 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend approval of the Final Truth in Taxation Certification and authorization for the 
President of the Port Authority to submit the Certification to Ramsey County. 
 
 
Attachments:   Comparison of Tax Levy 
     Resolution 
  



 
 

November 2025 
 

 Page 3 | MJS  
 

PORT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL 

COMPARISON OF TAX LEVY 
 

TAX LEVY PAYABLE IN (Example A): 

 2026 2025 2024   
     

G.O. Bonds     $5,523,884 $5,527,366 $5,526,343   

             

Mandatory Levy 3,046,700 2,796,700 2,671,700   

         

Discretionary Levy 105,000 105,000 105,000  

     

TOTAL $ 8,675,584 $ 8,429,066 $ 8,303,043   
  
  
 
 

TAX LEVY PAYABLE IN (Example B): 

 2026 2025 2024   
     

G.O. Bonds     $5,523,884 $5,527,366 $5,526,343   

             

Mandatory Levy 2,796,700 2,796,700 2,671,700   

         

Discretionary Levy 105,000 105,000 105,000  

     

TOTAL $ 8,425,584 $ 8,429,066 $ 8,303,043   
  
      



Resolution No. 4835 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE 
PORT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL 

 
[APPROVAL OF FINAL CERTIFICATION OF TAX LEVY] 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 275.065, all taxing districts are 
required to certify the final levy they may impose for the current tax year payable in 2026 prior 
to the end of December, 2025. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Port Authority’s Preliminary Truth in Taxation Certification increased its 
Mandatory Levy for taxes payable in 2026 by $250,000. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Saint Paul’s Preliminary Truth in Taxation Certification did not 
include the Port Authority’s levy increase, and the City is investigating various budget/levy 
options, but the City’s final levy certification determination is not anticipated to be made until its 
December 3, 2025, Council meeting.  

 
WHEREAS, the Port Authority is approving its Final Certification of the Tax Levy prior to 

the City, and it is prudent to both adopt and adjust the Truth in Taxation Certification to the level 
approved by the City under Option A with this increase or Option B without this increase and 
authorize the President of the Port Authority of the City of Saint Paul to certify the levy 
accordingly. 

 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Port Authority adopts its maximum tax levy 
for taxes payable in 2026 as follows (Option A): 
  
1. General Obligation Bond Debt Service:    $5,523,884  
 
2. Mandatory Levy pursuant to Minnesota Statutes   $3,046,700 

Section 469.053, Subdivision 4, at a rate not to exceed  
.01813% of market value: 

 
3. Discretionary Levy pursuant to Minnesota Statutes    $  105,000 
 Section 469.053, Subdivision 6, pledged to industrial     
 redevelopment:         
 
 TOTAL 2025 TAX LEVY PAYABLE IN 2026    $8,675,584 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that if the City of Saint Paul does not approve the Mandatory 

Levy at the above-stated level, then the Port Authority alternatively adopts as the Port 
Authority’s maximum tax levy for taxes payable in 2026 to the 2025 level as follows (Option B): 
 



1. General Obligation Bond Debt Service:    $5,523,884   
 
3. Mandatory Levy pursuant to Minnesota Statutes   $2,796,700 

Section 469.053, Subdivision 4, at a rate not to exceed  
.01813% of market value: 

 
3. Discretionary Levy pursuant to Minnesota Statutes    $  105,000 
 Section 469.053, Subdivision 6, pledged to industrial     
 redevelopment:         
 
 TOTAL 2025 TAX LEVY PAYABLE IN 2026    $8,425,584 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the President of the Port Authority of the City of Saint 

Paul is authorized to adjust the Truth In Taxation Certification to the level approved by the City. 
 
 

Adopted:  November 25, 2025 
 
       PORT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF 
       SAINT PAUL 
 
 
       By _____________________________ 
             Its Chair 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By _____________________________ 
      Its Secretary 



 
 

MINUTES 

Credit Committee – October 27, 2025 | Page 1 of 3 | pjv 
 

 
 SPECIAL CREDIT COMMITTEE MEETING 

OCTOBER 27, 2025 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 

  A special meeting of the Port Authority Credit Committee was held on October 27, 2025, at 
1:40 p.m. in the Board Room of the Saint Paul Port Authority, 400 Wabasha Street, Suite 240, Saint 
Paul, Minnesota, 55102.  
 

The following Committee Members were present:  
Amy Brendmoen    Courtney Henry  John Marshall   
Don Mullin    Trinidad Uribe   Mindy Utesch  

   
 

Also present were the following: 
Ashley Aram    Tonya Bauer   Todd Hurley  

 Holly Huston    Sarah Illi   Emma Kasiga    
Dana Krueger    Emily Lawrence  Francis Onu  

 Laurie Siever     Michael Solomon   Nikki Tix  
 Phoua Vang    Annie Watson   Kristine Williams 
 Linda Williams    JP Yohannes       

Cheniqua Johnson, City of Saint Paul 
Rebecca Noecker, City of Saint Paul   

 Gwenyth O’Valley, University of St. Thomas School of Law 
Miguel Brito, WSCO 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 Committee Member Mullin made a motion to approve the minutes of September 23, 2025 
regular Credit Committee meeting. The motion was seconded by Committee Member Brendmoen and 
carried unanimously.  
 

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST  
 

There were no conflicts of interest with any items on the agenda.  
 

AGENDA ITEMS  
 

DECERTIFICATION OF THE WESTMINSTER JUNCTION BUSINESS 
CENTER REDEVELOPMENT TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT 

Mr. Solomon reviewed his memorandum with the Committee, requesting approval to decertify 
the Westminster Junction Business Center Redevelopment Tax Increment Financing District and 
authorize staff to submit the required documents to Ramsey County. Committee Member Henry made 
a motion to approve the request. The motion was seconded by Committee Member Uribe and carried 
unanimously. 
 

 
 



 
 

MINUTES 

Credit Committee – October 27, 2025 | Page 2 of 3 | pjv 
 

 
CONVEYANCE OF LAND TO WILLOW PROPERTIES #37, LLC 
 – WESTGATE BUSINESS CENTER / PID NO. 292923220011 

Mr. Yohannes reviewed his memorandum with the Committee, requesting the approval of the 
conveyance of a 1.37-acre parcel of land from the Port Authority of the City of Saint Paul (the “Port 
Authority”) to Willow Properties #37, LLC located at the Westgate Business Center, further described 
as PID No. 292923220011. Committee Member Mullin made a motion to approve the request. The 
motion was seconded by Committee Member Utesch and submitted to a roll call vote as required under 
Minnesota Statutes. The Committee Members voted as follows: 

 
Committee Member Brendmoen – aye  Committee Member Henry – aye 

 Acting Committee Chair Marshall – aye  Committee Member Mullin – aye  
 Committee Chair Slaven – absent  Committee Member Uribe – aye 
 Committee Member Utesch - aye 

 
APPROVAL OF LEASE RENEWAL AND RENTAL RATE 

ADJUSTMENT FOR L.S. MARINE, INC – SOUTHPORT TERMINAL 
Ms. Williams reviewed her memorandum with the Committee, requesting approval of a lease 

renewal and rental rate adjustment for the Port Authority to extend the lease term and adjust the 
rental and fleeting rates for land leased by L.S. Marine, Inc., located in the Southport Terminal at 637 
Barge Channel Road and Fleeting Area A, being the upriver 500 lineal feet of Fleeting Area #7, in Saint 
Paul, Minnesota. Committee Member Brendmoen made a motion to approve the request. The motion 
was seconded by Committee Member Henry and carried unanimously. 
 

AUTHORIZATION OF CONTRACT AWARD FOR THE CONSTRUCTION AND 
INSTALLATION OF THE BARGE TERMINAL 2 – DOCKWALL REHABILITATION PROJECT 

Ms. Williams reviewed her memorandum with the Committee, requesting authorization to 
award a contract to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder for the construction and installation 
of the Barge Terminal 2 – Dockwall Rehabilitation Project located at 283 Alabama Street (also referred 
to as 40 State Street) in Saint Paul, Minnesota. Committee Member Brendmoen made a motion to 
approve the request. The motion was seconded by Committee Member Henry and carried 
unanimously. 
 

APPROVAL OF AN UPDATED RIVER LEASE AND CONTRIBUTION AGREEMENT 
FOR UPPER RIVER SERVICES, INC. – BARGE TERMINAL 2 AND FLEETING AREAS 

 Ms. Williams reviewed her memorandum with the Committee, requesting approval of (1) an 
updated 15-year river lease with the tenant, Upper River Services, Inc. (“URS), for 169,514 square feet 
of land located in Barge Terminal 2 and 30,500 lineal feet of fleeting areas located along the Mississippi 
River; and (2) related Contribution Agreement covering URS’s financial contribution to the 
rehabilitation of the BT2 dockwall. Committee Member Henry made a motion to approve the request. 
The motion was seconded by Committee Member Mullin and carried unanimously. 

 

 

 

 



 
 

MINUTES 

Credit Committee – October 27, 2025 | Page 3 of 3 | pjv 
 

 
QUARTERLY REPORT ON EXTERNAL PACE LENDING – 3Q 2025 

 Ms. Huston presented the Committee with the Quarterly Report on External PACE Loans. 
The Committee thanked Ms. Huston for her report.  

 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 2:10 p.m. 
 
      By: _________________________________ 
       
      Its: _________________________________ 



                                                           MEMORANDUM 

Page 1 | HKH 
 

 

To: CREDIT COMMITTEE      Meeting Date:   November 25, 2025 
 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

From: Holly Huston   
 

Subject: AUTHORIZATION TO ACCEPT GRANT FUNDS APPROPRIATED BY STATE 
LEGISLATURE FOR A CAPITOL AREA ECONOMIC GRANT PROGRAM TO BE 
ADMINISTERED BY THE PORT AUTHORITY AND ENTER INTO RELATED GRANT 
AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE 

 RESOLUTION NO. 4836 
 
Action Requested: 
Authorize the Port Authority of the City of Saint Paul (the “Port Authority”) to (1) accept  
$1,000,000 in funds appropriated by the State Legislature (the “Grant”) for a Capitol Area 
Economic Development Grant Program (the “Program”) to be administered by the Port 
Authority; and (2) to enter into related Grant Agreement with the State (the “Grant Agreement”). 
 
Background: 
In 2025, the Minnesota Legislature appropriated $1,000,000 under Minnesota Session Laws – 
2025 (1st Special Session), Chapter 14, H.F. No. 17, Section 3, Subd. 3, Capitol Area Economic 
Development Grant Program, to the Port Authority to establish a grant initiative supporting new 
and existing businesses within the Capitol Area, as defined in Minnesota Statutes, Section 15B.02 
and depicted on the attached map. This initiative advances recommendations from the 2024 
Capitol Area Architectural and Planning Board (CAAPB) Community Vitality Task Force, which 
identified economic and community revitalization as a top priority for the district. 
 
Proposal: 
The currently contemplated details of the Program are below, which are subject to change as we 
continue to develop the Program with the State, and will be presented to the Board for its final 
review and approval at the December meeting. 
 
The Port Authority Board of Commissioners is requested to: 

1. Accept the State grant funds appropriated for the Capitol Area Economic Development 
Grant Program. 

2. Authorize staff to develop, launch, and administer the program in compliance with 
Minnesota Department of Administration  

3. Allow up to 10% of total grant funds to be used for program administration.  
 
The Program, branded as the Capitol Outreach for Revitalization and Expansion (CORE) Grant 
Program, will provide grants between $50,000 and $150,000, to qualifying businesses for capital 
improvements, such as equipment purchases, façade upgrades, and accessibility or energy-
efficiency enhancements. Up to ten percent (10%) of the total allocation may be used for 
program administration. We anticipate providing between 6-17 grants based on the legislated 
parameters of the Grant. 
 



                                                           MEMORANDUM 

Page 2 | HKH 
 

 
An application period will open two times per year, and proposals will be evaluated based on 
criteria including job creation, property value impact, economic vitality, and community benefit. 
Selected projects will be funded on a reimbursement basis upon verification of eligible 
expenditures and reporting outcomes, ensuring accountability and alignment with legislative 
intent and the Port Authority’s mission to promote economic growth through jobs and tax base. 
  
Budget: 
Grant Awards     $   870,000 
SPPA Administration   $   100,000 
Department of Administration  $     30,000 
Total      $1,000,000 
 
Timeline: 
December 2025 

- Enter into Grant Agreement with the State  
- Community Outreach 
- Finalize necessary agreements and documents to implement the Program 
- Request approval of the CORE Grant Program guidelines and implementation plan from 

the Port Authority Board 
January 2026 

- Application opens through the end of March 
April 2026 

- Review applications and award grants 
June 2026 

- Second application round opens through the end of August 
- Report to Port Authority Board on progress 

December 2026 
- Report to the Port Authority Board and the State on Program grants, outcomes, and 

impact. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend approval of a resolution authorizing the Port Authority to accept the Grant for 
the Program and to enter into the Grant Agreement. 
 
Attachments: Map of Capitol Area 

Resolution  



 

Page 3 | HKH 
 

Map of Capitol Area 

 

 



Resolution No. 4836 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE  

PORT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL 

[AUTHORIZATION TO ACCEPT GRANT FUNDS APPROPRIATED BY STATE LEGISLATURE FOR A 
CAPITOL AREA ECONOMIC GRANT PROGRAM TO BE ADMINISTERED BY THE PORT AUTHORITY 

AND ENTER INTO RELATED GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE] 

WHEREAS, via Minnesota Session Laws – 2025 (1st Special Session), Chapter 14, H.F. No. 17, 
Section 3, Subdivision 3, Capitol Area Economic Development Grant Program (the “CORE Law”), the 
Minnesota Legislature provided for a grant of $1 million (the “Grant”) to the Port Authority of 
the City of Saint Paul (the “Port Authority”) for the purpose of establishing a grant initiative to 
provide grants to new and existing businesses within the Capitol Area, as defined in Minnesota 
Statutes, Section 15B.02;  and 

WHEREAS, the Port Authority has been in negotiation with the Minnesota Department 
of Administration (the "State") with respect to the Grant and desires to accept the Grant and 
enter into a grant agreement with the State (the “Grant Agreement”) to allow the  Port Authority 
to use proceeds of the Grant in connection with a grant program supporting new and existing 
businesses within the Capitol Area, identified by the Port Authority as the Capitol Outreach for 
Revitalization and Expansion (the "CORE Grant Program"); and 

WHEREAS, through the CORE Grant Program, the Port Authority anticipates using 
proceeds of the Grant to provide subgrants to qualifying businesses within the Capitol Area, in 
amounts between $50,000 and $150,000 for capital improvements, such as equipment 
purchases, façade upgrades, and accessibility or energy-efficiency enhancements; and 

WHEREAS, the CORE Grant Program advances recommendations from the 2024 Capitol 
Area Architectural and Planning Board (CAAPB) Community Vitality Task Force, which identified 
economic and community revitalization as a top priority for the Capitol Area; and 

WHEREAS, the implementation of the CORE Grant Program is in the best interest of the 
residents of the City of Saint Paul. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Port Authority 
of the City of Saint Paul, as follows: 

1. The President of the Port Authority is hereby authorized to work with staff and 
counsel to the Port Authority to negotiate and finalize the Grant Agreement. The President is 
hereby authorized to accept the Grant and to execute the Grant Agreement and any related 
documents once finalized to the satisfaction of the President, including any amendments 
thereto, provided such amendments do not materially adversely affect the interests of the Port 
Authority, such amendments do not violate any Port Authority policy, and such amendments 
are acceptable in form and substance to counsel to the Port Authority. 

 
 
 
 



 

2. The Port Authority is authorized to undertake further development and exploration 
of the parameters and details of the CORE Grant Program and its administration, as outlined in 
the memorandum provided to the Board. 

 

Adopted: November 25, 2025 
 
 
      PORT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL 
 
 
       By        
       Its        
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By        
Its        

 



  

MINUTES 

Board – October 27, 2025 | Page 1 of 3 | pjv 
 

 
SPECIAL ANNUAL BOARD MEETING 

OCTOBER 27, 2025 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
  A Special Annual meeting of the Port Authority Board was held on October 27, 2025, at 
2:10 p.m. in the Board Room of the Saint Paul Port Authority, 400 Wabasha Street, Suite 240, 
Saint Paul, Minnesota, 55102.  
 

The following Board Members were present:  
Amy Brendmoen    Courtney Henry  Cheniqua Johnson

 John Marshall    Don Mullin   Rebecca Noecker 
         

Also present were the following: 
Ashley Aram    Tonya Bauer   Todd Hurley  

 Holly Huston    Sarah Illi   Emma Kasiga    
Dana Krueger    Emily Lawrence  Francis Onu  

 Laurie Siever     Michael Solomon   Nikki Tix  
 Phoua Vang    Annie Watson   Kristine Williams 
 Linda Williams    JP Yohannes       

Trinidad Uribe, Sprinkler Fitters Local 417 
 Mindy Utesch, Old National Bank 
 Gwenyth O’Valley, University of St. Thomas School of Law 

Miguel Brito, WSCO 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 Commissioner Johnson made a motion to approve the minutes of the September 23, 2025 
Regular Board meeting. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Noecker and carried 
unanimously.  
 

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
 There were no conflicts of interest with any items on the agenda.  
 

NEW BUSINESS 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

ELECTION OF OFFICERS 

Commissioner Marshall recommended and made a motion for the appointment of the 
following slate of officers and committee chairs for 2026: 

 

 
 



  

MINUTES 

Board – October 27, 2025 | Page 2 of 3 | pjv 
 

  
Chair:     Don Mullin 

 Vice Chair:    Amy Brendmoen 
 Secretary:    Courtney Henry 
 Treasurer:    Cheniqua Johnson 
 Assistant Secretary:   Emily Lawrence, General Counsel  
 Assistant Treasurer:    Michael Solomon, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 Credit Committee Chair:   Matthew Slaven 
 Administrative Committee Chair:  John Marshall  

 
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Noecker and submitted to a roll call vote as 

required under Minnesota Statues. The Board voted as follows: 
 
 Commissioner Brendmoen – aye   Commissioner Henry – aye 
 Commissioner Johnson – absent   Commissioner Marshall – aye  

Chair Mullin – aye     Commissioner Noecker – aye 
 Commissioner Slaven – absent 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4828 
APPROVAL OF RE-ENGAGEMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR FOR FY2025 AUDIT 

 Motion was made by Commissioner Marshall to approve Resolution No. 4828, which was 
reviewed by the Administrative Committee and recommended to the Board. The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Johnson and carried unanimously. 
 

CREDIT COMMITTEE 
 

RESOLUTION NO 4829 
DECERTIFICATION OF THE WESTMINSTER JUNCTION BUSINESS 

CENTER REDEVELOPMENT TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT 

 Motion was made by Commissioner Marshall to approve Resolution No. 4829, which was 
reviewed by the Credit Committee and recommended for approval to the Board. The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Henry and carried unanimously.  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4830 
PUBLIC HEARING – CONVEYANCE OF LAND TO WILLOW PROPERTIES 

#37, LLC – WESTGATE BUSINESS CENTER / PID NO. 292923220011 

Motion was made by Commissioner Marshall to approve Resolution No. 4830, which was 
reviewed by the Credit Committee and recommended for approval to the Board. The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Henry. 

 
 
 



  

MINUTES 

Board – October 27, 2025 | Page 3 of 3 | pjv 
 

 
Chair Mullin stated that in accordance with Minnesota law, the Port Authority is required 

to hold a public hearing regarding Resolution No. 4830 and declared the public hearing open. He 
asked if anyone in attendance wished to address the Board. No public comments were made. 
Chair Mullin also confirmed that no comments had been received by staff prior to the meeting. 

 
Chair Mullin declared the public hearing closed and stated that a roll call vote is required 

under Minnesota Statues Chapter 469, and the Commissioners voted as follows: 
 

Commissioner Brendmoen – aye   Commissioner Henry – aye 
 Commissioner Johnson – aye   Commissioner Marshall – aye  

Chair Mullin – aye     Commissioner Noecker – aye  
Commissioner Slaven - absent 

  

RESOLUTION NO. 4831 
APPROVAL OF LEASE RENEWAL AND RENTAL RATE 

ADJUSTMENT FOR L.S. MARINE, INC. – SOUTHPORT TERMINAL 

Motion was made by Commissioner Marshall to approve Resolution No. 4831, which was 
reviewed by the Credit Committee and recommended for approval to the Board. The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Johnson and carried unanimously. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 4832 
AUTHORIZATION OF CONTRACT AWARD FOR THE CONSTRUCTION AND 

INSTALLATION OF THE BARGE TERMINAL 2 – DOCKWALL REHABILITATION PROJECT 

Motion was made by Commissioner Marshall to approve Resolution No. 4832, which was 
reviewed by the Credit Committee and recommended for approval to the Board. The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Henry and carried unanimously. 

RESOLUTION NO. 4833 
APPROVAL OF AN UPDATED RIVER LEASE AND CONTRIBUTION AGREEMENT 
FOR UPPER RIVER SERVICES, INC – BARGE TERMINAL 2 AND FLEETING AREAS 

Motion was made by Commissioner Marshall to approve Resolution No. 4833, which was 
reviewed by the Credit Committee and recommended for approval to the Board. The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Johnson and carried unanimously.  

 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 2:22 p.m.  

By: _________________________________ 

              Its: _________________________________ 


	Agenda - Admin, Credit, and Board - November 25, 2025
	Minutes - Admin Committee - October 27, 2025
	Memo - Approval of 2026 Operating Budget
	Attachment: 2026 Operating Budget Summary
	Resolution No. 4834
	Memo - Approval of Final Certification of Tax Levy
	Attachment: Comparison of Tax Levy
	Resolution No. 4835
	Minutes - Credit Committee - October 27, 2025
	Memo - Authorization to Accept Grant Funds Appropriated by State Legislature for a Capital Area  Economic Grant Program to be Administered by the Port Authority and Enter into Related 
Grant Agreement with the State
	Attachment: Map of Capitol Area
	Resolution No. 4836
	Minutes - Annual Board Meeting - October 27, 2025



